
 
      GREEN LAKE COUNTY  

          571 County Road A, Green Lake, WI  54941  
  

  
  

The following documents are included in the packet for the Green Lake County 
Board of Adjustment business meeting that is scheduled for Tuesday, February 
20, 2024.  The meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. The Public Hearing is not to begin 
before 10 a.m. 
 

Packet Pages:  

 2  Agenda  

 3   2024 Meeting Calendar 

 4-5  Draft Meeting Minutes from January 16, 2024 

 6-11  Operational Guidelines CUP Appeal 

 12  Public Hearing Notice 

 13-49  CUP and LUP Applications 

 50-97  Applicant Exhibits and Letters 

 98  Appellant Witness List 

 99  Appeal Application 

 100-130 Appellant Exhibits and Letters 

 131-132 LUP&Z Committee Staff Report 

 

 

If you have questions or need additional information, please contact 
the Land Use Planning & Zoning Department at (920) 294-4156. 



 

Please note: Meeting area is accessible to the physically disabled.  Anyone planning to attend who needs visual or 
audio assistance, should contact the Land Use Planning & Zoning office, no later than 3 days before date 0f the meeting. 

 
GREEN LAKE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

571 County Road A, Green Lake, WI  54941     www.greenlakecountywi.gov    
 

 

 

GREEN LAKE COUNTY  
Board of Adjustment 

571 County Road A, Green Lake, WI  54941 
 

Office: ( 920) 294-4156   FAX:  (920) 294-4198 

Email: zoning@greenlakecountywi.gov 

    Board of Adjustment Meeting Notice 

          Date:  February 20, 2024, Time:  9:00 AM 

          Green Lake County Government Center, Room #0902 

     571 County Road A, Green Lake, WI  54941 

 
AGENDA   

Board of 

Adjustment 

Members: 
 

Ron Triemstra,  

Chair 

 
Rick Dornfeld,  

Vice-Chair 

 
Peter Wallace, 

Member  

 

Brian 

Zimmerman, 

First Alternate 

 

BJ Zirger,  

Second 

alternate  

 

Karissa Block, 

BOA Secretary 

 

 

 
Virtual attendance at 

meetings is optional. If 

technical difficulties arise, 

there may be instances 

when remote access may 

be compromised. If there is 

a quorum attending in 

person, the meeting will 

proceed as scheduled. 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

1. Call to order 

2. Roll call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Certification of open meeting law  

5. Approval of 2024 Board of Adjustment Calendar 

6. Approval of Minutes: 1/16/2024 

7. Adjourn for field inspection 

8. Public Hearing (not to begin before 10:00am) 

 

Appellants: Joseph and Brian Wroblewski, Attorney: Kevin Clark, von Breisen 

& Roper. Owner/Applicant: Little Green Lodge LLC. Agent: Tony Goebel. 

Parcel #: 006-01384-0000, #006-00614-0000, General Legal Description: 

Part of NW ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 32, T15N, R13E, Town of Green Lake. 

Administrative Appeal: The Board of Adjustment will conduct a de novo 

(new) hearing to determine whether to approve (with or without conditions) an 

application for a Conditional Use Permit filed by Tony Goebel for a tiki bar, 

bathroom building, walk-in cooler building, and storage shed. 

a. Public Hearing 

b. Board Discussion & Deliberation 

c. Board Decision 

 

9. Adjourn 

This meeting will be conducted through in person attendance or audio/visual 

communication.  Remote access can be obtained through the following link: 
Topic: Board of Adjustment Meeting 

Time: February 20, 2024 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada) 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 279 354 999 467  

Passcode: npWkS7 

Download Teams | Join on the web 

Or call in (audio only) 

+1 920-515-0745,,854004712#   United States, Green Bay 

Phone Conference ID: 854 004 712# 
Find a local number | Reset PIN 

Please accept at your earliest convenience. Thank you! 
Learn More | Help | Meeting options | Legal 

 

 

 

http://www.greenlakecountywi.gov/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_Y2U0MjYxMzAtNTZmNC00MjgyLTg5N2QtZTQzZjQ4MDNhMWQx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226e4bd50f-9266-4d14-8159-66cdd4fec978%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227bafe0c6-ebfc-4f03-99d8-3eec9803f384%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
tel:+19205150745,,854004712
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/2896325c-bae3-46f8-b42e-39f2bee2d3c2?id=854004712
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting
https://greenlakecountywi.gov/joiningmeetinghelp.html
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=7bafe0c6-ebfc-4f03-99d8-3eec9803f384&tenantId=6e4bd50f-9266-4d14-8159-66cdd4fec978&threadId=19_meeting_Y2U0MjYxMzAtNTZmNC00MjgyLTg5N2QtZTQzZjQ4MDNhMWQx@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://greenlakecountywi.gov/legal.html


Board of Adjustment 
2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9   10 11   12   13 
14 15 16   17   18   19   20 
21 22 23 24   25   26   27 
28 29 30 31    
       

 

February 
S M T W T F S 

    1 2 3 
4 5   6  7 8 9 10 
11 12   13  14 15 16 17 
18 19   20  21 22 23 24 
25 26   27  28 29   
       

 

March 
S M T W T F S 
     1    2 

3 4 5 6 7 8    9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19   20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31       

 

Meeting Dates: 
 January 16 

February 20 
March 15 
April 19 
May 17 
June 21 
July 19 

August 16 
September 20 
October 18 

November 15 
December 2 

 
 

July 
S M T W T F S 

    1    2 3 4    5    6 
   7    8    9   10   11   12   13 
  14   15   16   17   18   19   20 
  21   22   23   24   25   26   27 
  28   29   30   31    
       

 

August 
S M T W T F S 

       1 2    3 
   4 5    6 7 8    9   10   
  11 12   13 14   15   16   17 
  18 19   20 21   22   23   24 
  25 26   27 28   29   30   31 

       

 

September 
S M T W T F S 
1 2    3 4 5 6    7 
8 9   10 11 12   13 14 

  15   16   17 18 19   20 21 
  22   23   24 25 26   27   28 
  29   30      

       

 
October 

S M T W T F S 
     1    2    3    4    5 

   6    7    8    9   10   11   12 
  13   14   15   16   17   18   19 
  20   21   22   23   24   25   26 
  27   28   29   30   31   
       

 

November 
S M T W T F S 

        1    2 
   3    4    5    6    7    8    9 
  10   11   12   13   14   15   16 
  17   18   19   20   21   22   23 
  24   25   26   27   28   29   30 

       

 

December 
S M T W T F S 

   1    2    3   4 5   6 7 
   8    9  10  11   12   13 14 
  15   16   17   18   19   20 21 
  22   23   24   25 26   27 28 
  29   30   31     

       

 

April 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5  6 
7 8 9   10   11 12 13 
14 15 16   17   18   19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30     
       

 

May 
S M T W T F S 

   1 2 3 4 
5 6 7   8  9   10   11 

12 13 14  15 16   17   18 
19 20 21 22 23   24 25 
26 27 28 29 30   31  

       

 

June 
S M T W T F S 
          1 

   2   3    4    5    6    7    8 
   9   10   11   12   13   14   15 
  16   17   18   19   20   21   22 
  23   24   25   26   27   28   29 

30       

 

3



Green Lake County  
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

January 16,2024 

The meeting of the Green Lake County Board of Adjustment was called to order by Chair Ron 
Triemstra on Tuesday, January 16, 2024, at 9:00 AM in the Green Lake County Board Room, 
Green Lake County Government Center, 571 County Road A, Green Lake, WI. The meeting was 
held both in person and via remote access. The requirements of the open meeting law were 
certified as being met. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

ROLL CALL 

  Present:   Ron Triemstra, Chair                        Also Present:  Crystal Fieber, Hopp Law Offices 
                  Rick Dornfeld, Vice-Chair  
       Peter Wallace 
                  BJ Zirger (Alternate) – remote 
 
Other County employees present: 
Liz Otto; County Clerk, Cate Wylie; County Administrator, Jeff Mann; Corp Counsel; Matt 
Kirkman, P&Z Director; Bill Boutwell, Supervisor #9 
 
Chair Triemstra requested approval to change the order of the items on the agenda to move Item 
#8 to Item #6 per recommendation of Attorney Crystal Fieber.  Motion/second 
(Triemstra/Wallace) to change the order of items on the agenda as recommended.  Motion 
carried. 
 
MINUTES 
Motion/second (Triemstra/Dornfeld) to approve the minutes of the 11/17/2023 meeting. Motion 
carried with no negative vote.  
 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT RECUSAL DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION 
Attorney Crystal Fieber discussed a letter from the appellants, John and Brian Wroblewski, 
requesting that Ron Triemstra recuse himself from this matter. Fieber summarized the letter and 
advised that all board members must be free of bias and/or conflicts of interest.  Attorney Trace 
Hummel, representing the appellants, stated that Attorney Mann’s statement that this matter 
involves the “county vs. Wroblewski” is incorrect and that Triemstra does have a conflict due to 
hearing about the issue at the Land Use Planning & Zoning meeting.  Triemstra stated that after 
discussion he will not recuse himself and that he has no preconceived position as to the outcome 
of this matter.  The remaining members of the BOA agreed by general consensus. 
 
DISCUSSION ON LITTLE GREEN LODGE/CUP REVIEW HEARING AND 
INTRODUCTION OF APPOINTED COUNSEL, ATTORNEY CRYSTAL FIEBER 
Attorney Crystal Fieber provided a document outlining procedural guidelines for the February 
20, 2024 merit based hearing.  Items discussed included: 

• Site visit as requested by petitioner 

4



• Discussion regarding hire of a court reporter.  General consensus of the members felt that 
recording is sufficient and transcription can take place at a later date if necessary. 

• BOA members will receive information ahead of time in the form of written 
documentation.  Deadline for submission of all information for the packet will be 
02/06/2024 to Planning & Zoning Director Matt Kirkman. 

• Subpoena requests discussed. 
• All parties agreed that 4 hours is a sufficient amount of time for the meeting including 

site visit. 
• Witness list to be submitted by 02/06/2024 to Planning & Zoning Director Matt Kirkman.  

There will be an opportunity for public comment as well. 
 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES FOR 
LITTLE GREEN LODGE CUP REVIEW HEARING 
Attorney Crystal Fieber handed out operational guidelines for the February 20, 2024 meeting.  
She reviewed the document by item. 
 
Motion/second (Wallace/Dornfeld) to approve the operational procedures with the addition of a 
3 minute limit for public comment and no time limit set for information from the parties 
involved.  Motion carried with no negative vote. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion/second (Dornfeld/Wallace) to adjourn the meeting at 10:03 AM.  Motion carried with no 
negative vote. 
 
      
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Liz Otto 
County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES
CUP APPEAL

I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Certification of Open Meeting Law 

A. Agenda sent to media on 
B. Requested publication/notice on 

IV. Roll Call 

V. Approval of Agenda (voice vote) 

VI. Approval of Minutes (voice vote) 

VII. Adjourn for Field Inspection(s) 

VIII. Resume Meeting for Public Hearing 

Operational Procedures (Chair reads A-I)

A. This is a hearing on appeal of a Conditional Use Permit issued to the Little 
Green Lodge, LLC for property located at N2811 Park Road in the Town of 
Green Lake. 

Green Lake County Code § 350-62 A. Appeal procedure.

Appeals to the Board of Adjustment may be taken by any person aggrieved 
or by any officer, department, board or bureau of Green Lake County 
affected by any decision, order or ruling of the Land Use Planning and 
Zoning Department. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days, as provided 
by the rules of the Board of Adjustment, by filing with the Land Use Planning 
and Zoning Department a notice of appeal, on forms provided by the 
Department, specifying the grounds thereof.

 
This hearing will be conducted as a de novo hearing, meaning the Board 
will receive evidence it deems relevant to the decision and will not rely on 
information or evidence presented to the Land Use and Zoning Committee 
for issuance of the conditional use permit that is the subject of this appeal.

B. Green Lake County Code § 350-63 B.(4) Board Role in Appeal

6

https://ecode360.com/9771312#9771312


The Board of Adjustment may reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or may 
modify any order, requirement, decision or determination appealed from 
and may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought 
to be made and to that end shall have all the powers of the administrative 
officer. The concurring vote of two members of the Board shall be necessary 
to reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination appealed from, 
or to decide in favor of the applicant on any matter on which it is required to 
pass, or to effect any variation in the requirements of this chapter.

C. Staff will announce the request (LUP&Z Staff) 

D. The owner/applicant will present the request to the Board with any 
justification for the request. The Board may ask for clarification or additional 
information during the presentations.  The Chair will swear in any witnesses 
giving testimony.

E. The appellant will present justification for the appeal.  The Chair will swear 
in any witnesses giving testimony. The Board may ask for clarification or 
additional information during the presentations. 

F. Staff will present the staff report. The Board may ask for clarification or 
additional information during the presentations. 

G. Everyone wishing to make public comment will have an opportunity to 
speak. Statements will be addressed to the Board and not to others in the 
room. This is not a forum for debate. If statements for your position are the 
same as previous statements, do not repeat them, but summarize. 

H. Any correspondence received by the board related to the appeal will be 
presented.

I. After all comments and presentations have been made and recorded, the 
chair will close the public hearing for Board deliberations, motions, 
decisions and justification for the decision. Additional information or 
clarification by the Board will not be accepted once the public meeting has 
concluded. 

J. Board Determination Process

1. Findings of fact (based on ordinance jurisdiction and standards).  The 
Board will:

a. determine whether the application and evidence contains the 
information necessary to make a decision.

b. determine whether the board has the authority to make a 
decision. 

7



c. record pertinent facts from the record/ hearing on the decision 
form. 

2. Conclusions of law. The Board will:
a. specify applicable legal standards. (See attached Addendum A)
b. determine which facts relate to the legal standards. 
c. determine whether the legal standards are met (agree on any 

permit conditions).

3. Order and Determination.  The Board will:
a. decide/ vote on the case. (Roll call by BOA Secretary) 
b. direct the zoning administrator to take any necessary action.

X.  Other Correspondence 

XII. Next meeting date (TBA) 

XIII. Adjourn

8



Addendum A

§ 350-56 Review of permit application; standards and conditions.  The Board 
of Adjustment may, if appropriate, exercise authority under Green Lake County 
Code § 350-63 B.(4) as explained under Section VIII, B. of the Operational 
Guidelines.  The authority of the Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee is 
set forth below.  

1. Action by the Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee: The Land Use   
Planning and Zoning Committee shall review a request for a conditional use 
permit and deny, approve, or approve with conditions the request as the 
Committee may deem appropriate.

2.  Standards.

a. Conditional uses may be located in certain districts under certain 
conditions. When reviewing a conditional use permit, the Land 
Use Planning and Zoning Committee shall take into 
consideration, among other things, the recommendation of the 
affected town and the particular facts and circumstances of each 
proposed use in terms of the following standards and shall find 
substantial evidence that such standards are being satisfied.

b. If an applicant for a conditional use permit meets or agrees to 
meet all of the requirements and conditions specified in this 
chapter or those imposed by the Land Use Planning and Zoning 
Committee, the Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee shall 
grant the conditional use permit. Any condition imposed must be 
related to the purpose of the ordinance and be based on 
substantial evidence.

c. The requirements and conditions described under 
§ 350-56B(1)(a) above must be reasonable and, to the extent 
practicable, measurable and may include conditions such as the 
permit's duration, transfer, or renewal.

d. The applicant must demonstrate that the application and all 
requirements and conditions established by the Land Use 
Planning and Zoning Committee, relating to the conditional use, 
are or shall be satisfied, both of which must be supported by 

9

https://ecode360.com/9771273#9771273
https://ecode360.com/9771275#9771275
https://ecode360.com/35518611#35518611
https://ecode360.com/35518611#35518611
https://ecode360.com/35518613#35518613


substantial evidence. The Land Use Planning and Zoning 
Committee's decision to approve or deny the conditional use 
permit must be supported by substantial evidence.

3. No conditional use shall be approved or approved with conditions by the 
Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee unless it shall find the conditional 
use:

a. Will not have a negative effect upon the health, safety, and 
general welfare of occupants of surrounding lands;

b.  Will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained 
so as to be harmonious and be appropriate in appearance 
with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity 
and that such a use will not change the essential character of 
the same area;

c.  Will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future 
neighboring uses;

d.  Will not be detrimental to property in the immediate vicinity 
or to the community as a whole;

e.  Will be served adequately by essential public facilities and 
services, such as highways, streets, police and fire protection, 
drainage structures, and schools, and that the persons or 
agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed 
use shall be able to provide adequately any such service; and

f. Will have vehicular approaches to the property which shall 
be so designed as not to create an interference with traffic on 
surrounding public or private streets or roads.

4. The Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee may require additional 
standards and conditions that may be deemed necessary for the conditional 
use requested to meet the standards of this article. Such additional 
standards and conditions may include, but not be limited to, requirements 
pertaining to lot coverage, lot area, setbacks, building height, off-street 
parking and loading, pedestrian and vehicular accessways, storage, 

10

https://ecode360.com/9771277#9771277
https://ecode360.com/9771278#9771278
https://ecode360.com/9771280#9771280
https://ecode360.com/9771281#9771281
https://ecode360.com/9771282#9771282
https://ecode360.com/9771284#9771284


fencing, screening, landscaping, open space, height limitations, lighting, 
and hours of operation.

5. Enumerated throughout this chapter are the uses allowed in each district 
by conditional use permit.

6.  A conditional use shall lapse and become void one year after approval 
by the Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee unless substantial 
construction has been undertaken or the activity has commenced in 
accordance with the permit. The approved conditional use permit, unless 
otherwise specified in the conditions of approval, shall remain in effect as 
long as the authorized use continues. Prior to the reestablishment of an 
abandoned use, a new conditional use permit shall be obtained under the 
terms of this article.

7. No application for a conditional use permit which has been denied wholly 
or in part by the Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee shall be 
resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of said denial, except on 
the grounds of new evidence or proof of change of conditions is found to be 
valid.

8.  In the event that the Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee chooses 
to deny a person's conditional use permit application, the person may 
appeal the decision to the Board of Adjustment or to circuit court under the 
procedures contained in § 59.694(10) Wis. Stats.

11

https://ecode360.com/9771285#9771285
https://ecode360.com/9771287#9771287
https://ecode360.com/35518614#35518614


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The Green Lake County Board of Adjustment will hold a Public Hearing in County Board Room #0902 
of the Green Lake County Government Center, 571 County Road A, Green Lake, Wisconsin, on 
Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. to consider the following: 
 

 

Item I: Appellants: Joseph and Brian Wroblewski, Owner: Little Green Lodge LLC. Parcel #: 
006-01384-0000, #006-00614-0000, General Legal Description: Part of NW ¼ of NW ¼ of 
Section 32, T15N, R13E, Town of Green Lake. Administrative Appeal: The Board of Adjustment 
will conduct a de novo (new) hearing to determine whether to approve (with or without conditions) 
an application for a Conditional Use Permit filed by Little Green Lodge, LLC for a tiki bar, 
bathroom building, walk-in cooler building, and storage shed. 
 
 

All interested persons wishing to be heard at the public hearing are invited to attend. Please note that it is 
not uncommon for an owner/applicant to withdraw a request at the last minute. For further detailed 
information concerning this notice contact Land Use Planning and Zoning at (920) 294-4156.   
 
Publish:  February 8, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee Staff Report 

Public Hearing        April 12, 2023 

Item I: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Owner:      Applicant: 

Little Green Lodge LLC                             Tony Goebel  
 
Request: The owner/applicant is requesting a conditional use permit.  The use would include a 
lower level hotel suite, a mobile food / beverage truck and a storage building.   

Parcel Number/ Location: The request affects parcels 006-01384-0000 (±0.73 acres) and 006-
00614-0000 (±0.52 acres). The parcels are located in the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 32, 
T15N, R13E, Town of Green Lake. The site address is N2811 Park Rd. 

Existing Zoning and Uses of Adjacent Area: The parcel 006-01384-0000 is zoned C-1, General 
Commercial District. The property is currently being used as a restaurant with hotel/motel on 
the second floor. The parcel 006-00614-0000 is zoned C-2, Extensive Commercial District. This 
property is currently being used as a parking lot for the restaurant and hotel/motel. The two 
parcels are split by Park Rd. To the West, the property is bordered by Little Green Lake. 
Following the lakeshore to the south the neighboring property is zoned municipally under the 
City of Markesan and owned by the City. This property appears to be used for open space with 
a few buildings. To the North and East, the properties are zoned as R-1, Single-Family Residence 
District, and appear to be used for single family residences. To the Southeast there is also a 
parcel zoned R-3, Multiple-Family Residence District that is used as a mobile home park. 

Additional Information/Analysis: Originally this property was developed as a tavern in the 
1970’s. In 2004 the tavern burned down and was subsequentially rebuilt on parcel 006-01384-
0000 under two conditional use permits. The 2004 CUPs approved reconstruction of the 
bar/restaurant use as well as the second story hotel/motel use.  The current CUP request is to 
allow for the current owner to utilize the lower level for hotel lodging purposes and to establish 
a mobile food / beverage truck on parcel 006-01384-0000.  The lower-level suite will allow for 
additional lodging space and the mobile food / beverage truck would be utilized as an outdoor 
bar / restaurant to include Friday fish frys and ice cream, beer/liquor, brat and burger sales.   

A second CUP was approved in 2010 allowing for the upgrading of the parking lot located on 
parcel 006-00614-0000. The current CUP request includes the addition of a 16ft x 44ft storage 
building to be constructed on the parking lot parcel.  The storage building would be utilized to 
store equipment related to the property’s use.  

General Standards for Review of Conditional Use Requests: It is important that the Committee 
maintain the purpose and intent of the County Zoning Ordinance when reviewing and 
approving a request of this nature.  The Committee shall take into consideration, among other 

34



things, the recommendation of the affected town and the particular facts and circumstances of 
each proposed use in terms of the standards found in Section 350-56 “Review of permit 
application; standards and conditions” of the County Zoning Ordinance.    

County Staff Comments: This request should be reviewed by the Committee to determine if it 
meets the general criteria for review as listed above.  If the Committee wishes to approve this 
request, the following conditions may be appropriate: 

1. No additional expansion or addition of structures and/or uses relating to this conditional 
use permit shall occur without review and approval through future conditional use 
permit(s).  

2. That the owners/applicants are responsible for obtaining permits and licenses from any 
other regulatory agency, if required. 

3. That the owner/applicant apply for and receive a Land Use Permit prior to making any 
changes authorized through this conditional use permit approval process.   

4. That within one year of CUP approval the owner/applicant provide appropriate 
vegetative screening or code-compliant fencing to hide the dumpsters as well as provide 
the neighbors to the parking lot with privacy screening.  

5. That if vegetative screening is utilized instead of privacy fencing, any dead, dying or 
diseased vegetation shall be removed and replaced with viable and effective, visual-
screening vegetation as soon as practicable.         

 
Town of Green Lake:  The Town Board Action request for the Conditional Use Permit was sent 
to the Town Clerk on February 15, 2023. The Town Board does not object to and approves the 
request.  

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



©2021 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

JOB NUMBER

230185700

LA
KE

VI
EW

 T
ER

RA
CE

 F
O

R:

LI
TT

LE
 G

RE
EN

 L
O

DG
E

N
28

11
 P

AR
K 

RO
AD

 ●
 M

AR
KE

SA
N

, W
I 5

39
46

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

PRELIMINARY DATES

C1.1
CIVIL SITE PLAN

MAY 3, 2023
JUNE 9, 2023

42



43



44



Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee Staff Report 

Public Hearing        August 3, 2023 

Item I: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Owner:      Applicant: 

Little Green Lodge LLC                             Tony Goebel  
 
Request: The owner/applicant is requesting a conditional use permit.  The use would include 
the conversion of an existing shed to a tiki bar, the construction of a bathroom building with 
attached storage space and an additional storage shed.   

Parcel Number/ Location: The request affects parcel 006-01384-0000 (±0.73 acres). The parcel 
is located in the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 32, T15N, R13E, Town of Green Lake. The site 
address is N2811 Park Rd. 

Existing Zoning and Uses of Adjacent Area: The parcel 006-01384-0000 is zoned C-1, General 
Commercial District. The property is currently being used as event space with lodging on the 
second and basement levels. To the West, the property is bordered by Little Green Lake. 
Following the lakeshore to the south the neighboring property is zoned municipally under the 
City of Markesan and owned by the City and is used for open space with a few buildings. To the 
North and East, the properties are zoned as R-1, Single-Family Residence District, and appear to 
be used for single family residences. To the Southeast there is also a parcel zoned R-3, Multiple-
Family Residence District that is used as a mobile home park. 

Additional Information/Analysis: Originally this property was developed as a tavern in the 
1970’s. In 2004 the tavern burned down and was subsequentially rebuilt on parcel 006-01384-
0000 under two conditional use permits. The 2004 CUPs approved reconstruction of the 
bar/restaurant use as well as the second story hotel/motel use. Earlier this year a CUP was 
approved to allow the current owner to utilize the lower level for hotel lodging purposes and to 
establish a mobile food / beverage truck.  

This CUP request is to change the use of the existing shed on the property from storage to a tiki 
bar. The owner would also like to add an outdoor bathroom to meet ADA compliance with the 
commercial building requirements. A walk-in cooler building that would store food and alcohol 
is also being asked for and would be placed near the proposed bathroom. A shed on the south 
side of the property is also being requested to be added. The owner also provides an 
alternative location for the new buildings across Park Rd on the parcel (006-00614-0000). 

General Standards for Review of Conditional Use Requests: It is important that the Committee 
maintain the purpose and intent of the County Zoning Ordinance when reviewing and 
approving a request of this nature.  The Committee shall take into consideration, among other 
things, the recommendation of the affected town and the particular facts and circumstances of 

45



each proposed use in terms of the standards found in Section 350-56 “Review of permit 
application; standards and conditions” of the County Zoning Ordinance.   The Committee need 
not consider requirements that would apply to the local Town, other County, State or Federal 
entities of jurisdiction. 

County Staff Comments: This request should be reviewed by the Committee to determine if it 
meets the general criteria for review as cited above.  If the Committee wishes to approve this 
request, the following conditions may be appropriate: 

1. No additional expansion or addition of structures and/or uses relating to this conditional 
use permit shall occur without review and approval through future conditional use 
permit(s).  

2. That the owners/applicants are responsible for obtaining permits and licenses from any 
other regulatory agency, if required. 

3. That the owner/applicant apply for and receive a Land Use Permit prior to making any 
changes authorized through this conditional use permit approval process.   

4. That within one year of CUP approval the owner/applicant provide appropriate 
vegetative screening or code-compliant fencing to hide the dumpsters as well as provide 
privacy screening to neighbors to the parking lot.  

5. That if vegetative screening is utilized instead of privacy fencing, any dead, dying or 
diseased vegetation shall be removed and replaced with viable and effective, visual-
screening vegetation as soon as practicable.         

6. No new structures, authorized by this conditional use permit, shall be located within the Little 
Green Lake Protection and Rehabilitation District’s maintenance easement. 

 
Town of Green Lake:  The Town Board Action request for the Conditional Use Permit was sent 
to the Town Clerk on June 13, 2023. The Town Board does not object to and approves the 
request.  

46



47



48



49



Site Map of N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI
Little Green Lodge LLC

#3 Wroblewski #4 Little Green Lodge LLC

#7 R3 Zoning 
Campground

#5
Little 
Green 
Lodge 
LLC

#2 
Little Green 
Lodge LLC

C2 Commercial
Parking Lot

#6 Public Park

#1 
Little Green 
Lodge LLC

C1 Zoned for Hotel
And Restaurant

There are three properties zoned R1 Residential that boarder the property. Including the 
Wroblewski’s and two that the applicant (Little Green Lodge LLC) owns. All three are 
licensed with the County of Green Lake as short term rentals and not private homes. 

=#3, #4, #5

Entire property owned by Little Green Lodge LLC is C1 zoned property for hotel and restaurant use. 
Located in Shoreland Zoning District and not the Shoreland Wetland District. Zoned C1 for 30+ years.=#1

KEY:

Separate tax parcel that is C2 zoned property owned by Little Green Lodge LLC used as parking lot. =#2

=#6

=#7

Public Park owned by the City of Markesan. Soldiers-Sailors Park

R3 zoned property operating as a campground.

Under paragraphs 2A and 2C
call for the property to not 
Be detrimental to the public
Health or public interest. 

There is not a harm to public
Health or public interest.

1. This property is already, 
and has been C1 
commercially zoned as 
a hotel and restaurant use
for 40+ years. The CUP did
not change the use that was
already established for the
existing C1 property. 

2. The appeal was filed by
property owners that bought 
their property knowing the
were buying next to a C1
zoned property. 

3. The property is surrounded
by 3 short term rentals, a C2 
zoned parking lot, a public
park and a R3 zoned property
used as a campground

4. The existed storage shed 
That was approved as a tiki
Bar was replaced with a LUP
In the same spot and size. 
Which was able to be done.

There is not a better spot
on Little Green Lake to 
have this C1 property. 

50

tony
Typewriter
Exhibit 1 - Site Map



51

tony
Typewriter
Exhibit 2 - CUP old owners

Page 9 is site map with tiki bar
building identified as a "shed"



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



 

     

  A 

 B 

 C 

Friday June 23, 2023 Exhibit 3

Opening night of The Terrace at Little Green.

60



Exhibit 4 - Photos of “Boathouses” on Little Green Lake 

Two R1 zoned properties that are licensed as Short Term Rentals 

       A 

     B 

61



Tony Goebel

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Hi Tony, 

Rezabek, Dale H - DNR <Dale.Rezabek@wisconsin.gov> 
Thursday, December 14, 2023 1:16 PM 
Tony Goebel; Kirkman, Matt 
RE: Local WDNR Shoreland Zoning Secialist 

[
Matt can answer the guestions since shoreland zoning and comprehensive zoning are 

J 

administered by the county. The department provides technical assistance to the county for 
shoreland zoning. The CUP was under comprehensive zoning. 

Dale 

We are committed to service excellence. 

Visit our survey at http://dnr.wi.gov/customersurvey to evaluate how I did. 

0 1le Rezabek, PG (He/Him/His) 

Shot eland Specialist 
WONR Waterways Program 
Phone: (920) 267-1739 
Ddh-' Rezabek@wisconsin.gov 

From: Tony Goebel <tony@Sgbenefits.com> 
Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2023 8:12 AM 

To: Kirkman, Matt <mkirkman@greenlakecountywi.gov> 
Cc: Rezabek, Dale H - DNR <Dale.Rezabek@wisconsin.gov> 
Subject: Re: Local WDNR Shoreland Zoning Secialist 

m.!1111w.Y1•11Mi11e111■i1:a.�me,.14,,.m,1,,.;:.,,.w,;,1,a-1,!®•Ut+1t1 

Hi Matt and Dale, 

I spoke to the corporate council for Green Lake county board of adjustments. We will have to present a case for the facts 
;;ibout our situation to the BOA. 

I have relied to this point on both of you for your interpretation of the rules since you both know them better than 
anybody. 

I have verbal discussions with both of you on this but I will need to have some sort of "presentation" to the BOA of the 
reasoning. 

Exhibit 5

62



Exhibit 6

63



Exhibit 7

64



Exhibit 8

65



Exhibit 9 
 
§ 350-32C-1 General Commercial District. 
The C-1 General Commercial District is intended to provide an area for 
business and commercial needs; it can be especially useful for those conditions 
where commercial businesses are located in a centrally situated business 
district. 
A.  
Permitted uses. 
(1)  
Art shop, antique shop and gift shop. 

(2)  
Boat livery, service and repair shop. 

(3)  
Drugstore, ice cream shop, pharmacy and soft drink stand. 

(4)  
Food and drug establishments (retail), delicatessens, fruit and vegetable store, 
grocery store, and meat and fish markets. 

(5)  
Signs pertaining to the conduct of a business on the premises. 

(6)  
Such accessory uses as are customary in connection with the foregoing uses 
and are incidental thereto. 

B.  
Conditional uses. An application for a conditional use permit shall not be 
approved unless, at a minimum, it complies with the conditions and standards 
set forth in Article VII, Conditional Use Permits. 
(1)  
Hotel or motel. 

(2)  
One single-family residential use may be allowed on a lot or parcel in this 
district. The single-family residence shall only be occupied by the owner or 
operator of the commercial use. 
[Amended 9-20-2022 by Ord. No. 17-2022] 

(3)  

66

https://ecode360.com/9770999#9770999
https://ecode360.com/9770999#9770999
https://ecode360.com/9771000#9771000
https://ecode360.com/9771001#9771001
https://ecode360.com/9771002#9771002
https://ecode360.com/9771003#9771003
https://ecode360.com/9771004#9771004
https://ecode360.com/9771005#9771005
https://ecode360.com/9771006#9771006
https://ecode360.com/9771007#9771007
https://ecode360.com/9771248#9771248
https://ecode360.com/9771008#9771008
https://ecode360.com/9771009#9771009
https://ecode360.com/9771010#9771010


Automobile service establishment. 

(4)  
Restaurant, barbecue stand, cafe, cafeteria, caterer, tavern and package 
fermented beverage and liquor store. 

(5)  
Parking lot. 

(6)  
Public garage. 

(7)  
Storage building. 

(8)  
Municipal buildings, including administrative office, meeting hall and attached 
inside storage of municipal vehicles and equipment, with no outside storage 
allowed; no municipal accessory structure allowed on a premises until the 
principal structure is present. 
[Added 10-17-2006 by Ord. No. 880-06] 

C.  
Area, height and setback regulations: Refer to §§ 350-18, 350-19 and 350-20. 
[Amended 11-14-2017 by Ord. No. 22-2017] 

D.  
Highway setbacks: Refer to § 350-50A. 
[Amended 11-14-2017 by Ord. No. 22-2017] 
 

67

https://ecode360.com/9771011#9771011
https://ecode360.com/9771012#9771012
https://ecode360.com/9771013#9771013
https://ecode360.com/9771014#9771014
https://ecode360.com/9771015#9771015
https://ecode360.com/9771016#9771016
https://ecode360.com/9770748#9770748
https://ecode360.com/9770752#9770752
https://ecode360.com/9770756#9770756
https://ecode360.com/9771017#9771017
https://ecode360.com/9771232#9771232


Exhibit 10 
 
§ 350-14Nonconforming uses, structures and lots or parcels. 
[Amended 11-14-2017 by Ord. No. 22-2017] 

A.  
Nonconforming uses. 
(1)  
The existing lawful use of a structure or premises upon the effective date of this 
chapter or any amendment thereto may be continued although such does not 
conform to the provisions of this chapter for the district in which it is located, but 
such nonconforming use shall not be extended. The construction of a private 
residential accessory structure shall not be considered as the extension of a 
nonconforming use. 

(2)  
If no structural alterations are made, a nonconforming use of a structure may 
be changed to another nonconforming use of the same or a more restricted 
classification. Whenever a nonconforming use has been changed to a more 
restricted nonconforming use or a conforming use, such use shall not thereafter 
be changed to a less restricted use. 

(3)  
If a nonconforming use of a structure or premises is discontinued for a period 
of 12 consecutive months, any future use of the structure or premises shall 
conform to the regulations for the district in which it is located. 

(4)  
If a premises contains an existing nonconforming use, a conforming use shall 
not be permitted on that premises until such time as the nonconforming use is 
discontinued or brought into compliance with the provisions of this chapter. 

(5)  
(Reserved) 

(6)  
Passage of this chapter in no way legalizes any illegal uses existing at the time 
of its adoption. 

B.  
Nonconforming structures. Structures that were lawfully constructed prior to the 
effective date of this chapter that are conforming to this chapter as to use but 

68

https://ecode360.com/9770607#9770607
https://ecode360.com/9770607#9770607
https://ecode360.com/9770608#9770608
https://ecode360.com/9770609#9770609
https://ecode360.com/9770610#9770610
https://ecode360.com/9770611#9770611
https://ecode360.com/9770612#9770612
https://ecode360.com/9770613#9770613
https://ecode360.com/9770614#9770614
https://ecode360.com/9770615#9770615


do not conform as to dimensional rules (setbacks, height, separations, etc.) and 
which are proposed to be altered are subject to the following requirements: 
(1)  
Repairs and improvements of a maintenance nature are allowed. 

(2)  
Alterations, additions and expansions that change the exterior dimension of the 
structure and that conform to the dimensional rules of this chapter are allowed. 

(3)  
Alterations, additions and expansions that change the exterior dimensions of 
the structure and that do not conform to this chapter, but which do not increase 
the dimensional nonconformity beyond that which existed prior to the effective 
date of this chapter, are allowed, provided that they do not exceed 50% of the 
current total assessed value of the structure for the lifetime of the structure. Also 
see § 350-51 relating to existing nonconforming buildings, signs, structures, or 
parts thereof located in highway setbacks. 

(4)  
No alterations, additions or expansions may occur that will increase the 
dimensional nonconformity. 

(5)  
Per § 59.69(10e)(a) and (b), Wis. Stats., a nonconforming dwelling or 
nonconforming building, or part thereof, shall be permitted to be rebuilt so long 
as the three-dimensional building envelope is not increased. 
[Added 3-19-2019 by Ord. No. 2-2019] 

C.  
Nonconforming lots or parcels.[1] Any lot or parcel created prior to the effective 
date of this chapter, or revisions and/or amendments thereto, which does not 
meet the current minimum lot or parcel size standards of this chapter shall not 
be reduced in size unless the reduction results in compliance with the minimum 
lot or parcel size standard of the zoning district in which it is located. 
[1] 
Editor's Note: Original § 3.3(4)(c)1, which was included in this subsection, is now 
included as the definition of "nonconforming lot" in § 350-77. 

D.  
(Reserved)[2] 
[2] 
Editor's Note: Former Subsection D was repealed 9-20-2022 by Ord. No. 17-2022. 

69

https://ecode360.com/9770616#9770616
https://ecode360.com/9770617#9770617
https://ecode360.com/9770618#9770618
https://ecode360.com/9771237#9771237
https://ecode360.com/9770619#9770619
https://ecode360.com/35518603#35518603
https://ecode360.com/9770620#9770620
https://ecode360.com/9770607#ft9770620-1
https://ecode360.com/9770607#ref9770620-1
https://ecode360.com/9771383#9771383
https://ecode360.com/9770621#9770621
https://ecode360.com/9770607#ft9770621-2
https://ecode360.com/9770607#ref9770621-2


E.  
Split-zoned lots or parcels: In no case shall a land use permit be issued to a 
property owner or property owner's agent for a lot or parcel that is split-zoned. 
In these cases, the property owner shall consult the Land Use Planning and 
Zoning Department to obtain a resolution strategy to remedy the split-zoning 
condition. The resolution strategy could include a comprehensive plan 
amendment, rezone, and a certified survey map. Once the split-zoning 
condition has been eliminated, a land use permit may be issued subject to the 
provision of this chapter. 
 

70

https://ecode360.com/32820869#32820869


Exhibit 11 
 
§ 338-32Building setbacks. 
Permitted building setbacks shall be established to conform to health, safety 
and welfare requirements, preserve natural beauty, reduce flood hazards, and 
avoid water pollution. 
A.  
Shoreland setbacks. Unless exempt under § 338-32A(1), or reduced under 
§ 338-32B, a setback of 75 feet from the ordinary high-water mark of any 
navigable waters to the nearest part of a building or structure shall be required 
for all buildings and structures. 
[Amended 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 
(1)  
Exempt structures. Per § 59.692(1n)(d), Wis. Stats., all of the following 
structures are exempt from the shoreland setback standards in § 338-32A: 
(a)  
Boathouses located entirely above the ordinary high-water mark and entirely 
within the access and viewing corridor that do not contain plumbing and are not 
used for human habitation. All boathouses shall adhere to the following 
conditions: 
[1]  
The construction or placement of boathouses below the ordinary high-water 
mark of any navigable waters shall be prohibited. 

[2]  
Boathouses shall be designed and constructed solely for the storage of 
watercraft and related equipment. 

[3]  
One boathouse is permitted on a lot or parcel as an accessory structure. 

[4]  
Boathouses shall be designed and constructed to not destabilize the existing 
slope. Final grades must be at a slope that is naturally stable, depending on soil 
type. All boathouse construction projects that require land disturbing activities 
shall be authorized in accordance with § 338-41 of this chapter. 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

[5]  

71

https://ecode360.com/32065213#32065213
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065215#32065215
https://ecode360.com/32065241#32065241
https://ecode360.com/32065215#32065215
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065216#32065216
https://ecode360.com/32065217#32065217
https://ecode360.com/32065218#32065218
https://ecode360.com/32065219#32065219
https://ecode360.com/32065220#32065220
https://ecode360.com/32065271#32065271
https://ecode360.com/32065221#32065221


Boathouses shall be constructed in conformity with local floodplain zoning 
standards. Fill, elevation surveys, or other documentation may be required 
within 180 days of permit issuance, per § 300-38B(4). 

[6]  
Boathouses shall be one story with sidewalls not exceeding 10 feet in height 
and a footprint entirely within the access and viewing corridor of the vegetative 
buffer. The footprint is not to exceed 16 feet in width by 24 feet in depth, with 
the width running parallel to the shore. 

[7]  
Boathouse roofs shall be designed with a pitched roof having a minimum slope 
of 2/12, a maximum slope of 6/12, and in no case shall be designed for use as 
a deck, observation platform, or for other similar uses. Dormers are allowed so 
long as the dormer's height does not exceed the height of the main ridge line of 
the boathouse. One cupola, no greater than 30 inches in length and width, is 
allowed on the main ridge line. Parapet walls are not allowed. 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

[8]  
Earth-toned color shall be required for all exterior surfaces of a boathouse. For 
the purpose of this chapter, the color white is an earth-toned color. 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

[9]  
The boathouse's main door shall face the water and shall be at least 50% of the 
width (measured running parallel to the shore) of the boathouse. 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

[10]  
Any features the Department considers inconsistent with the use of the 
structure exclusively as a boathouse are not permitted. Examples may include 
but not be limited to patio doors, fireplaces, decks, and living quarters. 

[11]  
Per § 59.692(1o), Wis. Stats., the roof of an existing boathouse may be used 
as a deck, provided that the boathouse has a flat roof, has no side walls or 
screened walls, and has a railing that meets Department of Safety and 
Professional Services standards. 

[12]  

72

https://ecode360.com/14348641#14348641
https://ecode360.com/32065222#32065222
https://ecode360.com/32065223#32065223
https://ecode360.com/32065224#32065224
https://ecode360.com/32065225#32065225
https://ecode360.com/32065226#32065226
https://ecode360.com/32065227#32065227
https://ecode360.com/35518561#35518561


No boathouse wall, door, or access opening shall be more than 1/3 transparent 
or translucent. 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

[13]  
Boathouse roof overhangs shall not project more than 24 inches out from the 
boathouse side wall. 

(b)  
Open-sided and screened structures, such as gazebos, decks, patios, and 
screen houses in the shoreland setback area that satisfy the following 
requirements in § 59.692(1v), Wis. Stats. 
[1]  
The part of the structure that is nearest to the water is located at least 35 feet 
landward from the ordinary high-water mark. 

[2]  
The floor area of all the structures in the shoreland setback area will not exceed 
200 square feet. In calculating this square footage, boathouses shall be 
excluded. 

[3]  
The structure that is the subject of the request for special zoning permission 
has no sides or has open or screened sides. 

[4]  
The County must approve a plan that will be implemented by the owner of the 
property to preserve or establish a vegetative buffer zone that covers at least 
70% of the half of the shoreland setback area that is nearest to the water. Note: 
The statutory requirements under § 59.692(1v), Wis. Stats., which require the 
establishment of a vegetative buffer for the construction of open-sided 
structures are not superseded by § 59.692(1f)(a). 
[a]  
Note: Where reference is made to a shoreland vegetative buffer zone, the buffer 
shall be designed in accordance with NRCS Interim Standard No. 643A and 
NRCS Wisconsin Biology Technical Note 1: Shoreland Habitat. In cases where 
these standards provide options, the Land Use Planning and Zoning 
Department shall make the determination which option is most appropriate in 
the design and execution of the project. 
[Added 2-15-2022 by Ord. No. 1-2022] 

[5]  

73

https://ecode360.com/35518562#35518562
https://ecode360.com/32065228#32065228
https://ecode360.com/32065229#32065229
https://ecode360.com/32065230#32065230
https://ecode360.com/32065231#32065231
https://ecode360.com/32065232#32065232
https://ecode360.com/41990229#41990229
https://ecode360.com/32065234#32065234


[1]An enforceable obligation shall be evidenced by an instrument recorded with 
the Register of Deeds prior to the issuance of a land use permit. This instrument 
shall include an implementation schedule and enforceable obligation on the 
property owner to establish and maintain the shoreland vegetative buffer zone. 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 
[1] 
Editor's Note: Former Subsection A(1)(b)[5] was repealed 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 
38-2021. This ordinance also renumbered former Subsection A(1)(b)[6] as 
Subsection A(1)(b)[5]. 

(c)  
Broadcast signal receivers, including satellite dishes or antennas that are one 
meter or less in diameter and satellite earth station antennas that are two 
meters or less in diameter. 

(d)  
Utility transmission and distribution lines, poles, towers, water towers, pumping 
stations, well pump house covers, private on-site wastewater treatment 
systems that comply with Ch. SPS 383, and other utility structures that have no 
feasible alternative location outside of the minimum setback and that employ 
best management practices to infiltrate or otherwise control stormwater runoff 
from the structure. 

(e)  
One walkway, stairway or rail system is allowed per lot or parcel. Walkways, 
stairways or rail systems are exempt from § 338-41F through H of this chapter. 
A walkway, stairway or rail system shall be permitted, provided: 
[Amended 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 
[1]  
The structure shall be located within the access and viewing corridor and 
designed so as to minimize earth disturbing activities and shoreline vegetation 
removal. 

[2]  
The structure shall not exceed a maximum of 60 inches in width, including 
railings, and shall not branch out within the shoreland setback. Landings, as 
part of the shoreline access system, shall be limited to a maximum of 40 square 
feet and no more than 60 inches wide. 

[3]  

74

https://ecode360.com/32065213#ft32065234-1
https://ecode360.com/32065213#ref32065234-1
https://ecode360.com/32065235#32065235
https://ecode360.com/32065236#32065236
https://ecode360.com/32065237#32065237
https://ecode360.com/35518577#35518577
https://ecode360.com/41991757#41991757
https://ecode360.com/32065238#32065238
https://ecode360.com/35518563#35518563
https://ecode360.com/35518564#35518564


Railings are permitted only where required by safety concerns, state statutes, 
or state regulations. 

[4]  
Canopies and/or roofs on such structures are prohibited. 

[5]  
A stairway shall be supported on piles or footings rather than being excavated 
from erodible soils, steep slopes, or similar conditions of concern. 

[6]  
A walkway and associated stairs, excavated from underlying soils, is allowed 
on slopes no greater than 25% to provide pedestrian access to the shoreline. 

[7]  
Standards for removal of shoreline vegetation shall be complied with, per 
Article VII. 

[8]  
In cases of steep slopes, a rail system (i.e., tram or lift) in addition to a stairway, 
shall be permitted as long as the rail system is mounted to or immediately 
adjacent to the existing stairway and can be located entirely within the access 
and viewing corridor per § 338-37B. 

(f)  
Devices or systems used to treat runoff from impervious surfaces. 

(2)  
Existing Exempt Structures. Per § 59.692(1k)(a)2m, Wis. Stats., existing 
exempt structure may be maintained, repaired, replaced, restored, rebuilt, and 
remodeled provided the activity does not expand the footprint and does not go 
beyond the three-dimensional building envelope of the existing structure. The 
expansion of a structure beyond the existing footprint may be permitted if the 
expansion is necessary to comply with applicable state and federal 
requirements. Note: Section 59.692(1k)(a)2m, Wis. Stats., prohibits counties 
from requiring any approval or imposing any fee or mitigation requirement for 
the activities specified in § 338-32A(2). However, it is important to note that 
property owners may be required to obtain permits or approvals and counties 
may impose fees under ordinances adopted pursuant to other statutory 
requirements, such as floodplain zoning, general zoning, sanitary codes, 
building codes, or even stormwater erosion control. 

B.  

75

https://ecode360.com/35518565#35518565
https://ecode360.com/35518566#35518566
https://ecode360.com/35518567#35518567
https://ecode360.com/35518568#35518568
https://ecode360.com/32065259#32065259
https://ecode360.com/35518569#35518569
https://ecode360.com/32065263#32065263
https://ecode360.com/32065239#32065239
https://ecode360.com/32065240#32065240
https://ecode360.com/32065240#32065240
https://ecode360.com/32065241#32065241


Reduced principal structure setback (§ 59.692(1n), Wis. Stats.). A setback less 
than the seventy-five-foot required setback from the ordinary high-water mark 
shall be permitted for a proposed principal structure and shall be determined as 
follows: 
(1)  
Where there are existing principal structures in both directions, the setback shall 
equal the average of the distances the two existing principal structures are set 
back from the ordinary high-water mark, provided that all of the following are 
met: 
(a)  
Both of the existing principal structures are located on an adjacent lot to the 
proposed principal structure. 

(b)  
Both of the existing principal structures are located within 250 feet of the 
proposed principal structure and are the closest structure. 

(c)  
Both of the existing principal structures are located less than 75 feet from the 
ordinary high-water mark. 

(d)  
The average setback shall not be reduced to less than 35 feet from the ordinary 
high-water mark of any navigable water. 

(e)  
Note: § 59.692(1d)(a), Wis. Stats., requires counties to adopt the standards 
consistent with § 338-32B(1) for reducing the shoreland setback. 

(2)  
Functional appurtenances that are accessory structures, such as open porches 
or decks, that are attached to the proposed principal structure and proposed at 
time of permit application, must comply with the reduced principal structure 
setback but shall not be used in the calculation of the reduced principal structure 
setback. 
[Added 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 

C.  
In addition to the shoreland setback standards in Subsections A and B above, 
buildings and structures shall comply with the following setback standards. 
(1)  
Side yard: twelve-foot minimum for lots at least 85 feet wide. 

76

https://ecode360.com/32065242#32065242
https://ecode360.com/32065243#32065243
https://ecode360.com/32065244#32065244
https://ecode360.com/32065245#32065245
https://ecode360.com/32065246#32065246
https://ecode360.com/32065247#32065247
https://ecode360.com/32065242#32065242
https://ecode360.com/35518570#35518570
https://ecode360.com/32065248#32065248
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065241#32065241
https://ecode360.com/32065249#32065249


(2)  
Side yard: ten-foot minimum for lots less than 85 feet wide. 

(3)  
Street yard: twenty-five-foot minimum. 

(4)  
Rear yard: None. In the case of corner lots, the rear yard shall be the opposite 
the shorter of the two street frontages. 
[Added 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021[2]] 
[2] 
Editor's Note: This ordinance also redesignated former Subsection C(4) as 
Subsection C(5). 

(5)  
Walkways no more than 36 inches wide and driveways shall be exempt from 
§ 338-32C(1) through (3). This does not exempt these structures from § 338-
32A, or other standards of this chapter. 
[Added 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 

D.  
In addition to the shoreland setback standard in Subsections A and B above, 
fences shall comply with the following: 
(1)  
All fences, no greater than eight feet in height, may be allowed along any lot 
line excluding the street right-of-way line and the side lot lines within the street-
yard setback. 

(2)  
Open style fences (greater than 50% open space), no greater than four feet in 
height, may be allowed along the street right-of-way line and alongside lot lines 
within the street-yard setback. 

(3)  
Open style agricultural fences, no greater than eight feet in height, are allowed 
without a land use permit. 
[Added 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

E.  
In addition to the shoreland setback standard in Subsections A and B above, 
retaining walls shall comply with the following: 
(1)  

77

https://ecode360.com/32065250#32065250
https://ecode360.com/32065251#32065251
https://ecode360.com/41990510#41990510
https://ecode360.com/32065213#ft41990510-2
https://ecode360.com/32065213#ref41990510-2
https://ecode360.com/35518571#35518571
https://ecode360.com/32065249#32065249
https://ecode360.com/32065251#32065251
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065252#32065252
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065241#32065241
https://ecode360.com/32065253#32065253
https://ecode360.com/32065254#32065254
https://ecode360.com/41990602#41990602
https://ecode360.com/32065255#32065255
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065241#32065241
https://ecode360.com/32065256#32065256


Retaining and decorative/landscape walls may be allowed in the street-yard, 
side-yard and rear-yard with a minimum zero setback. 

(2)  
Retaining walls, greater than six feet in height, shall be designed by a 
professional engineer. Stamped engineered plans shall be submitted to the 
Land Use Planning and Zoning Department as part of the land use permit 
application. 
[Added 12-21-2021 by Ord. No. 38-2021] 

F.  
In addition to the shoreland setback standard in Subsection A and B above, 
roof overhangs may project no more than 12 inches into a required side and/or 
street setback. No projections are allowed into the setback as required in 
Subsection A. 
[Added 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 
 

78

https://ecode360.com/41990604#41990604
https://ecode360.com/35518572#35518572
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065241#32065241
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214


Exhibit 12 
 
§ 338-54Discontinued nonconforming use. 
If a nonconforming use is discontinued for a period of 12 months, any future 
use of the building, structure, or property shall conform to this chapter. 
 
§ 338-55Maintenance, repair, replacement, or vertical expansion 
of nonconforming structures. 
A.  
An existing structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but does not 
comply with the required setbacks, per §§ 338-32 and 338-33, may be 
maintained, repaired, replaced, restored, rebuilt, or remodeled if the activity 
does not expand the footprint of the nonconforming structure. Further, an 
existing structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but does not 
comply with the required shoreland setback, may be vertically expanded unless 
the vertical expansion would extend more than 35 feet above grade level, as 
provided in § 338-52B. Expansion of a structure may be allowed beyond the 
existing footprint if the expansion is necessary to comply with applicable state 
or federal requirements. 

B.  
Note: 
(1)  
Section 59.692(1k)(a)1.b. and d., Wis. Stats., prohibits counties from requiring 
any approval or imposing any fee or mitigation requirement for the activities 
specified in § 338-55. However, it is important to note that property owners may 
be required to obtain permits or approvals and counties may impose fees under 
ordinances adopted pursuant to other statutory requirements, such as 
floodplain zoning, general zoning, sanitary codes, building codes, or even 
stormwater erosion control. 
[Amended 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 

(2)  
Section NR 115.05(1)(b)1m, Wis. Adm. Code, lists structures that are exempt 
from the shoreland setback. These structures are considered conforming 
structures and are not considered nonconforming structures. Structures that 
were granted variances or illegally constructed structures are not considered 
nonconforming structures. 
 

79

https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065331
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065332
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065332
https://ecode360.com/32065333#32065333
https://ecode360.com/32065213#32065213
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065328#32065328
https://ecode360.com/32065334#32065334
https://ecode360.com/32065335#32065335
https://ecode360.com/32065332#32065332
https://ecode360.com/32065336#32065336


§ 338-56Lateral expansion of nonconforming principal structure 
within the setback. 
An existing principal structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but 
does not comply with the required building setback per §§ 338-32A and 338-
33 may expand laterally, provided that all of the following requirements are met: 
A.  
The use of the structure has not been discontinued for a period of 12 months 
or more if a nonconforming use. 

B.  
The existing principal structure is at least 35 feet from the ordinary high-water 
mark. 

C.  
Lateral expansions are limited to a maximum of 200 square feet over the life of 
the structure. No portion of the expansion may be any closer to the ordinary 
high-water mark than the closest point of the existing principal structure. 

D.  
The Land Use Planning and Zoning Department shall issue a permit that 
requires a mitigation plan that shall be approved by the Land Use Planning and 
Zoning Department and implemented by the property owner by the date 
specified in the land use permit. The mitigation plan shall meet the standards 
found in Article XII. 

E.  
All other provisions of this chapter shall be met. 
 
§ 338-57Expansion of a nonconforming principal structure 
beyond setback. 
[Amended 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 

An existing principal structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but 
does not comply with the required building setback under §§ 338-32 and 338-
33, may be expanded landward of the shoreland setback area horizontally or 
vertically, provided that the expanded area meets the building setback 
requirements per § 338-32 or 338-33 and that all other provisions of this 
chapter are met. A mitigation plan is not required solely for expansion under 
this section, but may be required per Article IX. 
§ 338-58Relocation of nonconforming principal structure. 

80

https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065337
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065337
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065338#32065338
https://ecode360.com/32065339#32065339
https://ecode360.com/32065340#32065340
https://ecode360.com/32065341#32065341
https://ecode360.com/32065354#32065354
https://ecode360.com/32065342#32065342
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065343
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065343
https://ecode360.com/32065213#32065213
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065213#32065213
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065291#32065291
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065344


An existing principal structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but 
does not comply with the required building setback per §§ 338-32A and 338-
33, may be relocated on the property provided all of the following requirements 
are met: 
A.  
The use of the structure has not been discontinued for a period of 12 months 
or more if a nonconforming use. 

B.  
The existing principal structure is at least 35 feet from the ordinary high-water 
mark. 

C.  
No portion of the relocated structure is located any closer to the ordinary high-
water mark than the closest point of the existing principal structure. 

D.  
The Land Use Planning and Zoning Department determines that no other 
location is available on the property to build a principal structure of a 
comparable size to the structure proposed for relocation that will result in 
compliance with the shoreland setback requirement per § 338-32A. 

E.  
The Land Use Planning and Zoning Department shall issue a permit that 
requires a mitigation plan that shall be approved by the Land Use Planning and 
Zoning Department and implemented by the property owner by the date 
specified in the permit. The mitigation plan shall meet the standards found in 
Article XII and include enforceable obligations of the property owner to 
establish or maintain measures that the Land Use Planning and Zoning 
Department determines are adequate to offset the impacts of the permitted 
expansion on water quality, near-shore aquatic habitat, upland wildlife habitat, 
and natural scenic beauty. The mitigation measures shall be proportional to the 
amount and impacts of the replaced or relocated structure being permitted. The 
obligations of the property owner under the mitigation plan shall be evidenced 
by an instrument recorded in the office of the County Register of Deeds. 

F.  
All other provisions of this chapter shall be met. 
 
§ 338-59Maintenance, repair, replacement or vertical expansion 
of structures authorized by variance. 

81

https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065257#32065257
https://ecode360.com/32065345#32065345
https://ecode360.com/32065346#32065346
https://ecode360.com/32065347#32065347
https://ecode360.com/32065348#32065348
https://ecode360.com/32065214#32065214
https://ecode360.com/32065349#32065349
https://ecode360.com/32065354#32065354
https://ecode360.com/32065350#32065350
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065351
https://ecode360.com/32065331#32065351


A.  
A structure of which any part has been authorized to be located within the 
shoreland setback area by a variance granted before July 13, 2015, may be 
maintained, repaired, replaced, restored, rebuilt, or remodeled if the activity 
does not expand the footprint of the authorized structure. Additionally, the 
structure may be vertically expanded unless the vertical expansion would 
extend more than 35 feet above grade level. Counties may allow expansion of 
a structure beyond the existing footprint if the expansion is necessary to comply 
with applicable state or federal requirements. 
[Amended 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. 18-2019] 

B.  
Note: § 59.692(1k)(a)2, Wis. Stats., prohibits counties from requiring any 
approval or imposing any fee or mitigation requirement for the activities 
specified in § 338-59. However, it is important to note that property owners may 
be required to obtain permits or approvals and counties may impose fees under 
ordinances adopted pursuant to other statutory requirements, such as 
floodplain zoning, general zoning, sanitary codes, building codes, or even 
stormwater erosion control. 
 

82

https://ecode360.com/32065352#32065352
https://ecode360.com/32065353#32065353
https://ecode360.com/32065351#32065351


   

 

 

 

Airbnb listing – licensed as a short term rental and using R1 residentially zoned property for commercial use. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 13 – Neighboring properties used as short term rentals.

Owned by the Wroblewski’s. Airbnb and Vrbo listings 1/22/24 -  N2821 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946

83



 

 

 

 

 

 

 84



N2804 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946 

Licensed as Short Term Rental  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
85



N2822 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946 

Licensed as Short Term Rental  

 

 

 

86



Exhibit 15 – Photos inside shed  

 

N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI. Waterfront shed classified as “Shed” which is an accessory structure.  

 

Photos taken on February 25, 2023 by Tony Goebel 

Used for general storage including coolers, bins, restaurant cartons, metal bars, restaurant garbage bins, 
siding from the restaurant building, extra lumber, old windows from the restaurant building, and also 
some old boat motors. The building was not solely used for boat related items.  

 

 

        

                                     A                                                                                                     B 

87



February 6, 2024 

 

VIA E-Mail (crystal.fieber@hopplaw.com)  

Crystal Fieber, Esq. 

Green Lake County Board of Adjustments 

571 County Road A 

Green Lake, WI 54941 

 

RE: Response by owners of Little Green Lodge LLC for the Appeal to the Board of 

Adjustment by vonBriesen and Joseph & Brian Wroblewki (the “Appellants”) with information 

to be included for review in the February 20, 2024 BOA hearing.  

 

LETTER TO THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS: 

Dear Board of Adjustments: 

 We are representing ourselves in the matter of Joseph & Brian Wroblewski (the 

“Appellants”), owners of property located at N2821 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946 against our 

recently approved Land Use Planning & Zoning approval of a conditional use permit bathroom 

building, walk-in cooler, storage shed, and tiki bar change of use for the address of N2811 Park 

Road, Markesan, WI 53946 with Tax Parcel ID No. 006-01385-0000 and 006-00614-0000 

(“Subject Property”).  

The Applicant, Little Green Lodge LLC, asks for the Board of Adjustment of Green Lake 

County to approve the original approval from Green Lake County Land Use Planning & Zoning 

Board with no additional conditions added by the BOA. 

Almost every major point the Appellants and their legal counsel pointed out in their appeal, are  

misinterpretations of the county and state zoning codes. I’m not attorney or a zoning expert. But 

what I can do is read the zoning laws in place applicable to this property. And I will go one by 

one pointing out the flaws in their argument, and why the Green Lake County Board of 

Adjustments can approve the existing CUP approval.  

 

BACKGROUND 

Our property at N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI is zoned as C1-General Business District, 

which allows us to operate as a business for the permitted uses listed. In 2004, the old owners 

wanted to do more than the permitted uses after the previous building burned down, so they filed 

a Conditional Use application and were approved. Those Conditional uses under Chapter 350-32 

were #1 a hotel or motel and #4 a restaurant, caterer, tavern. That application was approved so 

from there the foregoing uses of the property are and were a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. That 

88

mailto:crystal.fieber@hopplaw.com


was also confirmed in our April 2023 Conditional Use permit application that we zoned as a 

hotel, restaurant, bar that can serve and host inside and outside. In that 2004 Conditional Use 

application was a site plan showing the now proposed tiki bar as a “shed”.  The Wroblewski’s 

legal team keep trying to have it classified or calling it a fishing shed or a boathouse, but that is 

not what it was or is. Regardless of that point, either way that shed is a legal non-conforming 

structure. What that means is since it was originally built, regulations were added for where 

properties can be built or not built. One of those includes a side yard set back from neighbors of 

12 feet from the lot line, or 25 feet from the road, or under Green Lake County Shoreland Zoning 

Chapter 338-32, 75 feet from the ordinary high water mark of a navigable waterway, also known 

as, Little Green Lake. Also, the building was a shed, and based on zoning codes the shed can be 

replaced with a new shed. Being a C1 commercially zoned property this shed is classified as an 

accessory structure and accessory use to the primary use. So we are able to use it in conjunction 

with our primary use of a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. 

 

REBUTTALS TO ARGUMENTS: 

Here are points their attorneys will try to make that we have rebuttals to: 

1. There is no additional harm to surrounding lands or neighbors than the current 

approved use and replacement of the existing nonconforming, accessory structure. 

Under Green Lake County Zoning Chapter 350-56 B. Paragraphs, 2A and 2C requires there 

what we are doing does not have a negative effect upon the health, safety, and general 

welfare of occupants or surrounding lands or will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing 

or future neighboring uses.  

A. The property has operated as a bar for many years and as a hotel, restaurant, tavern 

even prior to the 2004 Conditional Use Approval. Exhibit 1 – Site Map shows all the 

neighboring properties. It is surrounded and bordered by a C2 zoned commercial 

parking lot, three R1 residentially zoned properties that all are licensed as Short Term 

Rentals with the Green Lake County Health Department. One of which is owned by 

the Appellants, the Wroblewski’s and two by Little Green Lodge LLC, then a R3 

zoned campground and a public park owned by the City of Markesan. There is not a 

better spot on the lake to continue the C1 zoning.  

 

B. Every neighbor touching our commercially zoned property, bought their property 

knowing that this one was already zoned C1 as a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. The 

three properties that boarder the Subject Property that we don’t own include The 

Wrobleski’s who contested this CUP, they bought theirs in 2015. The Randalls who 

contested this and own the other restaurant on the lake, bought their home in 2018. 

The Muenchow’s, who contested this and own another bar/restaurant in Markesan, 

bought their home in 2010. And since 2004, before any of them purchased, this 

property was operating as a hotel, restaurant, and tavern, and has always been a C1 

zoned property, so what additional harm could be caused when the use requested is 

the same use as prior, and that is already approved for the property.  

89



 

C. Reviewing Exhibit 13 (neighboring properties used as short term rentals) you can see 

Airbnb and Vrbo listings for the Wroblewski’s property at N2821 Park Road, 

Markesan WI 53946. They will attempt to say this is their home or their cottage when 

they go to speak, saying this will impact them enjoying their home, asking you if you 

would want a tiki bar in your backyard, but it is a fact that they are licensed as a short 

term rental and using a R1 residentially zoned property for commercial uses. There is 

nothing against regulations saying they can’t, nor are we trying to argue against them 

using their property for that use, but their property is used as a vacation rental. In fact, 

they have more reviews on listing sites than any property on Little Green Lake. The 

reviews from their Airbnb and Vrbo guests confirm that it is beneficial to have our 

restaurant and tiki bar nearby. The Wroblewski’s have hosted on Airbnb for many 

years and have 99 Airbnb reviews on their rental. Germaine from Appleton, 

Wisconsin said the “restaurant/bar and park/beach just a few steps away adds a nice 

addition to our vacation”. The Wroblewski’s also have 135 reviews on Vrbo and a 

review from Peter K in July of 2023 said “Beautiful view, fire pit right on the water 

and right next the Little Green food truck. Enjoyed Friday fish fry there.” That 

doesn’t sound like a harm to public health or neighboring properties to me. 

A review from N2804 Park Road Markesan, WI another property located next door, 

from Takoda said “The Terrace, the tiki bar that just recently opened was our favorite 

part of our stay.” A review from N2822 Park Road, Markesan, WI said “Dinner at the 

Food Truck on the Terrace was delicious, the owners of the food truck were so 

welcoming! We are already planning our next getaway!” 

This appeal, and potential further appeals. All it is doing is shutting this restaurant 

down and hurting local businesses and the locals from enjoying this now beautiful, 

waterfront property.  

 

D. The bathroom building and walk in cooler are in a location that previously, many 

years ago, had a building that was torn down. The tiki bar is in a location that a 

previous legal nonconforming structure was and accessory use was located. There is 

no additional harm to any neighbor that wasn’t already there before.  

 

E. The proposed tiki bar will be there as a building whether the use is changed or not to 

a tiki bar. We are permitted being a C1 zoned property and authorized from our prior 

Green Lake County Conditional Use approval in April 2023 to serve food, alcohol, or 

host events outside of our property. So whether this tiki bar is there or not we are able 

to have people eat, drink, and host events on every square inch of our C1 

commercially zoned property. So I don’t know what they will even get if they win 

this appeal. They have every right to set a chair 6 inches from the lot line, watch the 

sunset, and drink a beer. Just like we do on our property whether it’s a beer I drink or 

from one of our guests.  

90



 

2. The Appellants keep referring to the proposed tiki bar as a Boathouse when in fact 

it is an accessory structure and an Existing Exempt Structure under Green Lake 

County Shoreland Zoning Chapter 338-32.  

 

In the Wrobelwski’s appeal their attorneys made an argument that the change in use from 

a fishing shed to a tiki bar within 75’ of the ordinary high watermark is not allowed, and 

they cited Green Lake County Ordinance Chapter 338-14. They were correct in many 

things they cited but they failed to mention the most critical pieces in the zoning codes, 

plus in the Wisconsin State Legislature under Subchapter 7 chapter 59.69.  

 

Under Green Lake County Shoreland Zoning Ordinance Chapter 338-32(A) they listed 

exemptions for, and I am summarizing (1) boathouses (2) open-sided screened structures, 

such as gazebos, (3) broadcast signal receivers, (4) utility lines, (5) walkways, and (6) 

devices or systems for runoff. That section says that any of those types of structures or 

buildings can still be built within the 75’ setback even today and that they are the only 

NEW exempt structures that can be built. But what the Appellants and their attorneys 

failed to mention was under Green Lake County Ordinance 338-32(A) paragraph 2, is 

about Existing Exempt Structures. Which clearly states that Per Chapter 

59.692(1k)(a)2m, Wis. Stats., existing exempt structure may be maintained, repaired, 

replaced, restored, rebuilt, and remodeled provided the activity does not expand the 

footprint and does not go beyond the three-dimensional building envelope of the existing 

structure. If you read under Chapter 350-14 B (5), It also says that, Per Chapter 59.69 

(10e)(a) and (b), Wis. Stats., a nonconforming dwelling or nonconforming building, or 

part therof, shall be permitted to be rebuilt so as long as the three-dimensional building 

envelope is not increase. If you read in Green Lake County Shoreland Zoning Chapter 

338-55 under Maintenance, repair, replacement, or vertical expansion of nonconforming 

structures it specifically addresses under Paragraph A that an existing structure that was 

lawfully placed when constructed but does not comply with the required setbacks per 

Chapter 338-32 and 338-33, may be maintained, repaired, replaced, restored, rebuilt, or 

remodeled if the activity does not expand the footprint of the non conforming structure. 

That’s a lot of words. But bottom line it is clear that based on all of Green Lake County 

Zoning codes and Wisconsin State Statues a nonconforming structure, and existing 

exempt structure, can be replaced with a new one that is beyond just a boathouse, even in 

the 75’ set back form the ordinary high water mark.  

 

That is why we FIRST before we even had the thought about wanting to change the use of the 

legal nonconforming building, which is the shed, we wanted to replace it. The previous building 

was in shambles and I wanted to address that area, clean it up, and get a new shed on the 

property. I didn’t want to go another year having it look like it did. So on April 17th, 2023, Noah 

Brown a land use specialist from Green Lake County did a site inspection with me. He took 

photos of the exiting shed, and with a tape measure took exact measurements of the shed and 

91



deck. I found a shed that could be delivered that fit the measurements and bought it. Because 

even though the structure was a legal non-conforming structure, which means it was too close to 

the water and the side yard, based on the County Shoreland Zoning code, we were able to replace 

this building. We submitted diagrams, exact photos, and measurements of the new shed to Noah 

Brown and on April 20, 2023 a LUP (Land Use Permit) was issued to replace the existing shed 

with a new shed. You have a copy of his notes, photos, and issued Land Use Permit showing the 

exact shed we were replacing the old shed, or what we really should be calling it, accessory 

structure.   

We confirmed with Green Lake County zoning that they had jurisdiction and the WDNR did not 

have any jurisdiction over the replacement of a nonconforming structure. That was confirmed by 

Dale Rezabek,  Shoreland Specialist from the Wisconsin DNR Waterways Program. Mr. 

Rezabek confirmed as well in an email Exhibit 5 that “…shoreland zoning and comprehensive 

zoning are administered by the county. The department providers technical assistance to the 

county for shoreland zoning. The CUP was under comprehensive zoning.” So their counsel 

inaccurately referenced not getting “permits” under Shoreland Wetland District Chapter 338-18.  

We took it a step further and also verified with Trace Strahle a Regulatory Specialist with the US 

Army Corps of Engineers that “no work in your project will be done in a WOUS (Little Green 

Lake): therefore you do not need a permit from the US Army Corps of Engineers” So the WDNR 

and US Army Corps of Engineers had nothing to do with the replacement of the existing shed 

and we could replace the existing shed with a new shed. And we also didn’t need to go to the 

Green Lake Conditional use committee to replace the existing. Which we had every right to do. 

If you looked at the original Green Lake County CUP approval from 2004 from the previous 

owners Vande Lake & Land, LLC which is referenced under Exhibit 2, page 9. It shows a Site 

Plan where the building in question is clearly marked as a SHED. Not a boathouse. A shed on a 

C1 zoned property is considered an accessory structure and an accessory structure on a C1 

property allows it to be used by the primary use of the approved zoning.  

If you then looked at Chapter 338-78 under Definitions of what is an accessory structure is, it 

defines an accessory structure as:  

A subordinate structure on the same property as the principal structure which is 

devoted to a use incidental to the principal use of the property. Accessory 

structures include, but are not limited to, detached garages, sheds, barns, 

gazebos, patios, decks, swimming pools, hot tubs, fences, retaining walls, 

driveways, parking lots, sidewalks, detached stairways, and lifts.  

 

Two key things in this definition of what is an accessory structure. Is that it is incidental to the 

principal use of the property. The principal use of the property is a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. 

That is a fact. We are zoned C1 and have a conditional use permit from 2004 and 2023 to operate 

as a hotel, restaurant, and tavern, inside and outside the property. So a shed can be used by the 

hotel, restaurant, and tavern as an accessory structure, beyond the use of a boathouse. And it was 

for many years even prior to us purchasing the property. Second, is that accessory structures 

92



include, but are not limited to those additional types of structures. That is a big additional 

inclusion to the definition of what an accessory structure is in Green Lake County Shoreland 

Zoning; the “but are not limited to”. There are zoning approvals all over the country classifying 

that tiki bars, outdoor dining, and outdoor bars are accessory uses to the primary use. Which 

once again, the property’s primary use and zoning approval is a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. So 

for the CUP committee or this BOA, changing the use of an existing exempt structure to a 

one that is “devoted to a use incidental to the principal use of the property” sounds exactly 

like what a summer tiki bar is to a hotel and restaurant. So I could even argue that I didn’t 

even need to come to the CUP committee at all to use a shed as an accessory structure to my 

primary use which is a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. But we still went through the process to 

formally get the conditional use approval. This also is clear as day, that the Green Lake County 

Zoning allows for an accessory structure to be a tiki bar, if the committee allows for it. Same 

with a bathroom building or walk-in cooler.  

 

 

3. The Appellants keep referring to the proposed tiki bar as a legal non-conforming 

use. It’s not a non-conforming use. The Existing Nonconforming structure is 

actually an accessory use to the forgoing use under Chapter 350-32 Zoning laws. 

With the foregoing and primary use being a hotel, restaurant, and tavern in the C1-

General Commercial District. 

 

Once we had our Land Use Permit and delivered our shed we then decided we wanted to 

formally get CUP approval to have that shed be formally considered a tiki bar. We worked with 

Noah Brown and Matt Kirkman at the Green Lake County Zoning Department that what we 

were requesting was something that could be approved and filed for another CUP approval. 

Which those CUP meetings happened in August and September of 2023, and we were ultimately 

approved for the change of use from the shed to tiki bar and the walk-in cooler and bathroom 

building. All of which are accessory structures to the primary use of the property.  

This is where the Appellant and the Wroblewski’s are extremely flawed and misinterpreting the 

correlation between the different zoning codes. They are confusing a legal non-conforming 

structure with a legal non-conforming use. They are also arguing in one argument where only a 

boathouse is an exempt structure but in another a fishing shed is a non-conforming use. It makes 

no sense. They are citing case laws of Lessard vs Burnett County that “nonconforming uses are 

closely limited and are not to be enlarged”. But the use we are looking to add or change, is the 

same use that is already approved, and one that is already an accepted conditional use, which 

again is a hotel, restaurant, and tavern.  Plus the shed, whether it is changed to a tiki bar or stays 

as a shed, is NOT a non-conforming use. If you were to read under Green Lake County Zoning 

Chapter 350-32 showing C-1 General Commercial district what the permitted and Conditional 

uses are, you will see all the permitted uses include (1) a gift shop, (2) boat livery, (3) drugstore, 

(4) ice cream shop, (5) food and drug establishment or grocery store. (6), Such accessory uses 

93



as are customary in connection with the foregoing uses and are incidental thereto. That is a 

PERMITTED USE.  

Under Chapter 350-77 Word usage and definitions the definition of an accessory use is ”a 

subordinate use, which is incidental to and customarily in connection with the principal 

structure or use, and which is located on the same property with such principal structure or 

use.” Once again, zoning departments, committees, counties, and municipalities all over the 

country classify tiki bars, outdoor dining, outdoor bars as accessory uses to the primary uses of a 

hotel, restaurant, and tavern. And we have conditional use approval for the property to be a hotel, 

restaurant, and tavern. Sounds very much like a tiki bar, on a property that has the principal 

structure used as a hotel, restaurant, or tavern is actually a permitted use under the current C1 

zoning laws.  

Furthermore, the existing principal structure on this property is also only 65 feet from the water. 

Many restaurants and commercially zoned properties across the state are located within that 75 

foot set back. So basically their legal team in their appeal said that a conditional use committee 

can not change the use from one business type to another of any non conforming structure? That 

literally makes no sense. That is why there are permitted and conditional uses written into zoning 

laws, so businesses know what they can and can’t be allowed to operate on that property. The 75 

foot set back from the ordinary high water mark has nothing to do with the Green Lake County 

Zoning Committee’s ability to change a use of a structure to a permitted use. Which this shed, 

and now a tiki bar, is an accessory structure, which is a permitted use under the current zoning.  

 

4. Their other argument about an outdoor bathroom and cooler not being listed as an 

approved permitted or conditional use is completely inaccurate of zoning laws.  

The purpose of a C1- General Business District property is to operate a business and counties 

will list Permitted uses and Conditional uses that could be approved. The Appellants in their 

appeal did list the potential conditional uses and stated “the conditional use ordinance does not 

authorize outdoor bathrooms or walk-in coolers”. I don’t know about you but I have never gone 

to a business and their sole purpose in business was to charge people to go to the bathroom. 

What is it, $1 for number 1 and $2 for a number 2? That’s why in order to operate a business, 

there are certain accessory structures that are needed to operate your business. A bathroom is one 

of them. A walk-in cooler is another. In fact, a tiki bar or outdoor bar for hotels and restaurants is 

an accessory structure to the primary use as well. A walk-in cooler is also just a shed, which is an 

approved accessory structure. That’s all it is. With the ability to have cooling mechanisms inside 

it. So once again the definition of an accessory use under Chapter 350-77 word usage and 

definitions, an accessory structure is “a subordinate structure, detached from the principal 

structure, the use of which is incidental to, and customarily found in connection with, the 

principal structure or use of the property. If we are going to expand the capacity of the property 

with outdoor facilities, then we need to have additional restrooms and they are in connection 

with the principal structure or use of the property. And once again under Green Lake County 

Zoning Chapter 350-32 showing C-1 General Commercial district (6) Such accessory uses as 

94



are customary in connection with the foregoing uses and are incidental thereto. So both the 

bathroom building and walk-in cooler, also known as a shed, are permitted uses and 

permitted structures. 

 

5. They also are going to try and say that under Green Lake County Ordinance 

Chapter 338-54 which states that “if a legal conforming use is discontinued for a 

period of 12 months, any future use of the building, structure, property shall 

conform to this chapter.” As part of this, I think they are trying to say we did 

something wrong by using the shed as a tiki bar prior to approval therefore we can’t 

be approved or it’s use was discontinued.  

 

This building was a shed, a shed is an accessory structure, and an accessory structure can be used 

in conjunction with the primary use of the principal structure on a property, which is a hotel, 

restaurant, and tavern. Under Chapter 350-14 they are confusing paragraph A (which is 

nonconforming uses) and paragraph B (which is nonconforming structures). Under B we proved 

we could replace the building with a new building. For paragraph A, we also proved that this 

shed is not a nonconforming use. It is actually an accessory use to the primary use, which is a 

hotel, restaurant, and tavern. So we are able to store beyond just boat related items in this shed. 

When we bought the property there were coolers, restaurant bins, metal pipes, siding from the 

restaurant building, windows, and restaurant garbages in that shed, beyond just boat related 

items. See Exhibit 15 – photos inside shed. It was clearly used by the old restaurant owner as 

overflow storage from the restaurant and tavern. After we replaced the shed with the new shed, 

we stored alcohol, cash registers, posters, garbages, and since we rent out boat slips and are on 

the water, fishing poles, and life jackets. They will probably try to show photos of the proposed 

tiki bar with chairs around it and the windows down, saying we used this as a tiki bar.  

We have done everything possible the right way, asking every department multiple times prior to 

doing something because we knew how many eyes were on us. We have every permit needed, 

know the rules, and listened to the direction from the Green Lake County zoning employees. 

Every single thing we did with this portable bar, portable cooler, and tiki bar, we verified with 

Noah Brown before doing it. Plus we already had CUP approval from April 2023 to host events 

and serve food and alcohol inside or outside the property. We don’t need CUP approval to set up 

a portable table to serve outside, and in fact the old restaurant hosted events outside in the 

summer many times, so do restaurants across this entire state.   

1. However, Exhibit 3 shows the photos of our opening night on June 23, 2023. We had a 

portable bar and portable kegerator cooler next to the accessory structure. Let me ask you 

this. If we were going to use the tiki bar prior to having CUP approval, why would we 

need to even set up a portable bar and portable kegerator cooler? We would have just had 

bar coolers, kegerator coolers, & used the tiki bar.  

2. Why would we spend 30 minutes every single time we opened to take out all the alcohol, 

cash register, garbages, coolers, only to spend 30 minutes every single night at closing to 

95



put it all back if we had any intention of using the proposed shed as a tiki bar prior to 

conditional use approval?  

3. And on opening night you can see the windows shut with no chairs. It was like that the 

first 2 weeks we were open. Why is that? Because after 2 weeks, we decided to ask Noah 

Brown if we can open it and he said YES. He said we can’t serve out of it but people can 

sit outside around it. And he said put a sign up saying it is a shed not a tiki bar. He even 

joked that if neighbors call him he will say, “well didn’t you read their sign that it’s a 

storage shed”? He retracted that he said after the appeal was brought forward that we 

could do that, but either way, we never once served out of the tiki bar. So why if our plan 

was to use this as a tiki bar wouldn’t we have used it from the beginning, which was our 

busiest night of the year.  

4. If this is even remotely an issue, I would point to Exhibit 4. These are boathouses on 

Little Green Lake. These are two R1 zoned properties that are licensed as short term 

rentals. These are actual boathouses that the tops were converted to party decks for 

drinking and sitting. I have no issue with people using their boathouses like this. But my 

point is, there are hundreds of properties with this exact situation in Green Lake County. 

On Little Green Lake, on Big Green Lake. Where boathouses are renovated to have party 

decks on top of them. Does the county call them up saying the use is changed? You will 

be setting a bad precedent if that is even remotely considered in this decision because I 

know the Appelant’s legal team will try to sway your decision because they show photos 

of chairs around the shed, or it was put to use prior to approval. Which is completely 

untrue, and still shouldn’t matter in the change of use for this structure.  

 

So to recap my argument:  

1. This is not harming the public since it is the same use as previously approved for decades. 

2. A non-conforming structure can be replaced with a new one which we did with an 

issued land use permit.  

3. This building is not a non conforming use. It is actually a permitted use. And the 

committee is able to have accessory structures in connection with the primary use of 

the property be extended beyond just a shed.  

4. The building in question is an existing exempt structure and was verified on the 2004 

CUP approval as a shed, which by definition is an accessory structure. And accessory 

structures can be used incidentally for the primary use of the property, which this 

property is a hotel, restaurant and tavern. That very much sounds exactly like what a 

summer tiki bar is for a hotel, restaurant, and tavern. 

5. Use of the tiki bar was only used as storage until we were approved to do so. Plus 

what are the Appelants trying to accomplish with this appeal, because we still have 

conditional use approval to use the entire property as a hotel, restaurant, and tavern 

for events inside and outside the buildings.  

 

 

96



 

 

 

 

CONCLUSION: 

 

It is clear that the BOA can approve the existing conditional use permit as it related to the 

conversion of the storage shed into a tiki bar for the purposes of selling and drinking 

alcohol. The BOA can also approve the outdoor bathroom, walk-in cooler.  

 

Thank you for your time today and hopefully this helps clear up the case that we should 

be allowed to keep the prior conditional use approval.  

 

/Electronically signed by Anthony (Tony) Goebel 

 

Anthony (Tony) Goebel 

Little Green Lodge LLC – Owner and Operator 

 

Cc:  Attorney Jeff Mann (via e-mail) 

 Matt E. Kirkman (via e-mail) 

 Attorney Kevin J. Clark (via-email) 

 

97



20975 Swenson Drive, Suite 400 • Waukesha, WI  53186 • Phone:  262-923-8664  • Fax:  262-888-1792
vonbriesen.com

TAGLaw International Lawyers

Kevin J. Clark
Direct Telephone

262-923-8664

February 6, 2024

VIA E-MAIL (Crystal.fieber@hopplaw.com)
Crystal Fieber, Esq.
Green Lake County Board of Adjustments
571 County Road 
Green Lake, WI 54941

Re: Appeal to the Board of Adjustment
Subject Property: N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946
Decision Date: September 7, 2023

WITNESS LIST

Dear Board of Adjustments: 

The appellants, Joe and Brian Wroblewski, may call on the following witnesses to testify 
at the February 20, 2024 Board of Adjustments hearing regarding the appeal related to the 
conditional use permit for property located at N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946 (“Subject 
Property”):

1. Jon Vandebrink, 111 South High Street, Markesan, WI 53946.

2. Joe and Brian Wroblewski, appellants.

3. Matt Kirkman, Green Lake County Land Use & Zoning Director.

Respectfully submitted. 

von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c.

/Electronically signed by Kevin J. Clark

Kevin J. Clark

KJC:bai
cc: Attorney Jeff Mann (via e-mail)

Matt E. Kirkman (via e-mail)
Tony Goebel (via e-mail)

40715648_1.DOCX

98

mailto:Crystal.fieber@hopplaw.com


99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



20975 Swenson Drive, Suite 400 • Waukesha, WI  53186 • Phone:  262-923-8664  • Fax:  262-888-1792
vonbriesen.com

TAGLaw International Lawyers

Kevin J. Clark
Direct Telephone

262-923-8664

February 6, 2024

VIA E-MAIL (Crystal.fieber@hopplaw.com)
Crystal Fieber, Esq.
Green Lake County Board of Adjustments
571 County Road A
Green Lake, WI 54941

Re: Appeal to the Board of Adjustment
Subject Property: N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946
Decision Date: September 7, 2023

SUPPLEMENTAL LETTER TO THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS

Dear Board of Adjustments:

This office represents Joe & Brian Wroblewski, owners property located at N2821 Park 
Road, Markesan, WI 53947. Their property is adjacent to the property containing the address 
N2811 Park Road, Markesan, WI 53946 (“Subject Property”), which was granted a conditional 
use permit (“CUP”) by the Land Use Planning & Zoning Committee on September 7, 2023. Joe 
and Brian Wroblewski filed an appeal to the Board of Adjustments, which is scheduled to be 
heard on February 20, 2024. The Green Lake County Board of Adjustment (“BOA”) has decided 
to review the application for the CUP under de novo review. I am writing this Supplemental Letter 
to the Board of Adjustment for the purposes of sharing additional information to the Board of 
Adjustment regarding the appeal.  

BACKGROUND

The applicant, Little Green Lake Lodge, LLC, is seeking a CUP to change the storage shed 
located within the 75’ setback from Little Green Lake to a Tiki Bar to serve alcohol to the public. 
See Little Green Lake Application dated 5/30/2023. 

The original structure on the Subject Property was a fishing shed, which was constructed 
prior to the Green Lake County Shoreland Ordinance making it a legal non-conforming 
structure and legal non-conforming use. 

115

mailto:Crystal.fieber@hopplaw.com


Crystal Fieber, Esq.
February 6, 2024
Page 2

In April, 2023, the applicant submitted a permit application to replace the structure of the 
shed, which was approved by Green Lake County. The application recognizes that: (1) the fishing 
shed was located approximately 20’ from the shore; (2) that the fishing shed was located 
approximately 6’ from the side yard; and (3) the County noted that this was located within 
shoreland zoning. See the below excerpt from the application:

A copy of the permit/application is attached hereto as Exhibit A. It is important to note 
that the by ordinance and statute, the shoreland setback from Little Green Lake is 75’. The 
required side yard setback is 12’ pursuant to Green Lake County Zoning Ordinances. Therefore, 
the structure is nonconforming with respect to at least two zoning requirements. 

The application at issue, now wishes to convert the shed from the nonconforming storage 
shed use to a tiki bar in the 75’ shoreland setback, which is prohibited by Wisconsin Statutes and 
the Green Lake County Zoning Code. 

ARGUMENT

Wisconsin Statutes § 59.692 defines “shoreland setback area” as “the area within a certain 
distance of the ordinary high-water mark in which the construction or placement of structures has 
been limited or prohibited under an ordinance under this section.” Wis. Stat. § 59.692(1)(bn). 

116



Crystal Fieber, Esq.
February 6, 2024
Page 3

Wisconsin Statutes § 59.692(1n)(d)(1)-(8) expressly provides what structures, and 
therefore uses, are exempt from the 75’ setback requirement. The structures include the following: 
(1) a boathouse; (2) open sided/screen structures; (3) a fishing raft; (4) a broadcast signal receiver; 
(5) a utility transmission line; (6) a walkway, stairway, or rail system; (7) a fence; and (8) a bridge. 
The aforementioned structures are the only structures that are exempt from the 75’ setback 
requirement and only the uses related to those structures are allowable.

The Green Lake County Shoreland Zoning Ordinance mirrors the Wisconsin Statutes with 
respect to what structures, and therefore what uses, are allowable within the 75’ setback. Green 
Lake County Zoning Ordinance § 338-32A provides that “unless exempt under § 338-32A(1), or 
reduced under § 338-32B, a setback of 75 feet from the ordinary high-water mark of any navigable 
waters to the nearest part of a building or structure shall be required for all buildings and 
structures.” The ordinance goes on to provide the same list of exempt structures as the Wisconsin 
Statutes, none of which includes a tiki bar that serves alcohol to the public. 

Additionally, the Green Lake County Ordinances § 350-14A(1) prohibits the extension of 
nonconforming uses. Here, the nonconforming structure was a storage shed and use was to store 
fishing equipment. The construction of this type of storage shed in the 75’ setback is no longer 
allowable under the current Shoreland Zoning Ordinance. Section 350-14A(2) allows for changes 
to a more restricted nonconforming uses: (1) if no structural alterations are made; and (2) the 
nonconforming use is of the same or a more restricted classification. Here, the structure has 
already been altered and the use that the applicant proposes is a significant expansion from a 
storage shed to a commercial tiki bar that serves alcohol to customers. It is not the same use or a 
use of a more restricted category. The storage shed, although it is located on a lot zoned as C-1, 
has never been used to sell alcohol from it.

It is well settled law that extensions or expansions in nonconforming uses are not protected 
under Wisconsin law. The Wisconsin Court of Appeals has dealt with the expansion of 
nonconforming uses and has stated “the violation of the nonconforming use by expansion or 
enlargement which changes the use invalidates the legal nonconforming use as well as the illegal 
change.” Waukesha Cnty. v. Pewaukee Marina, Inc., 187 Wis. 2d 18, 31, 522 N.W.2d 536, 542 (Ct. 
App. 1994). In other words, the expansion of the fishing storage shed to a tiki bar is invalid and 
invalidates the original nonconforming use as a matter of law.

The BOA does not have the authority under Wisconsin law or its ordinances to grant a 
conditional use permit that expands a nonconforming use beyond its original use. “The spirit of zoning 
is to restrict a nonconforming use and to eliminate such uses as quickly as possible.” Waukesha Cnty. 
v. Seitz, 140 Wis. 2d 111, 116, 409 N.W.2d 403, 406 (Ct. App. 1987).

117



Crystal Fieber, Esq.
February 6, 2024
Page 4

CONCLUSION

The appellants are respectfully requesting that the BOA deny the conditional use permit as it 
related to the conversion of the storage shed into a tiki bar for the purpose of selling alcohol. As the 
original appeal letter indicates, the appellants object to the outdoor bathroom/storage located adjacent 
to their lot, but will address that use at the hearing as necessary.

Very truly yours,

von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c.

/Electronically signed by Kevin J. Clark

Kevin J. Clark

KJC:bai
cc: Attorney Jeff Mann (via e-mail)

Matt E. Kirkman (via e-mail)
Tony Goebel (via e-mail)

40714868_1.DOCX

118



EXHIBIT A 

119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



Land Use Planning and Zoning Committee Staff Report 

Public Hearing        February 20, 2024 

Item I: Appeal by Wroblewski of Little Green Lodge Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Appellants: Joseph & Brian Wroblewski 

Owner / Applicant: Little Green Lodge LLC, Tony Goebel  

Request: The appellants are requesting BOA review of a conditional use permit approved on 
September 7th, 2023 that included the conversion of an existing shed to a tiki bar, the 
construction of a bathroom building, a walk-in cooler building and an additional storage shed.   

Parcel Number/ Location: The request affects parcel 006-01384-0000 (±0.73 acres). The parcel 
is located in the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 32, T15N, R13E, Town of Green Lake. The site 
address is N2811 Park Rd. 

Existing Zoning and Uses of Adjacent Area: The parcel 006-01384-0000 is zoned C-1, General 
Commercial District. The property is currently being used as event space with lodging on the 
second and basement levels and for public outdoor dining, accomplished by a food and 
beverage trailer. To the West, the property is bordered by Little Green Lake. Following the 
lakeshore to the south the neighboring property is zoned municipally under the City of 
Markesan and owned by the City and is used for open space with a few buildings. To the North 
and East, the properties are zoned as R-1, Single-Family Residence District, and appear to be 
used for single family residences. To the Southeast there is also a parcel zoned R-3, Multiple-
Family Residence District that is used as a mobile home park. 

The parcel abuts Little Green Lake and is therefore considered “shorelands” and is regulated by 
the County’s Shoreland Zoning Ordinance.  According to the WDNR’s Surface Water Data 
Viewer and the County’s GIS Viewer there are no designated wetlands on the subject parcel.  
Therefore, there are no “shoreland wetlands” on the subject parcel and consequently Article III 
“Shoreland Wetland District” of the County’s Shoreland Zoning Ordinance does not apply.  This 
was confirmed by WDNR’s Shoreland Zoning Specialist (Dale Rezabek).    

Additional Information/Analysis: Originally this property was developed as a tavern in the 
1970’s. In 2004 the tavern burned down and was subsequentially rebuilt under two conditional 
use permits. The 2004 CUPs approved reconstruction of the bar/restaurant use as well as the 
second story hotel/motel use. Earlier this year a CUP was approved to allow the current owner 
to utilize the lower level for hotel lodging purposes and to establish a mobile food / beverage 
truck for public outdoor dining.  

This CUP request is related specifically to an expansion, thru accessory structures, of the new 
outdoor dining use.  The applicant proposes to change an existing storage shed to a tiki bar and 
proposes to add an outdoor bathroom, a walk-in cooler building and a storage building.  The 
already approved outdoor dining use had matched Section 350-32B.(4) of the County Zoning 

131



Ordinance which allows, with CUP approval, a restaurant, barbeque stand, café, cafeteria, 
caterer, tavern and package fermented beverage and liquor store.  The proposed accessory 
structures expand the public outdoor dining use and therefore must be authorized by CUP in 
accordance with condition #1 of the applicant’s April 11th, 2023 CUP.   

As explained above the subject parcel is zoned and regulated under the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance and Shoreland Zoning Ordinance.  Also explained above, the subject parcel is not in 
the Shoreland Wetland District, so the associated use restrictions related to the County 
Shoreland Ordinance do not apply to the accessory structure on the subject parcel.  Their use is 
solely regulated by the County’s Zoning ordinance. 

BOA Standards for Appellate Review of Conditional Use Permit Approvals:  The general 
standards for review of CUP requests should be applied to any CUP approval.  These standards, 
when applied, maintain the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance.   

General Standards for Review of Conditional Use Requests:  In this case the BOA, shall take into 
consideration, among other things, the recommendation of the affected town and the 
particular facts and circumstances of each proposed use in terms of the standards found in 
Section 350-56 “Review of permit application; standards and conditions” of the County Zoning 
Ordinance.   The BOA need not consider requirements that would apply to the local Town, 
other County, State or Federal entities of jurisdiction. 

County Staff Comments: This request should be reviewed by the BOA to determine if it meets 
the general criteria for review as cited above.  If the Committee wishes to approve this request, 
the following conditions may be appropriate: 

1. No additional expansion or addition of structures and/or uses relating to this conditional 
use permit shall occur without review and approval through future conditional use 
permit(s).  

2. That the owners/applicants are responsible for obtaining permits and licenses from any 
other regulatory agency, if required. 

3. That the owner/applicant apply for and receive a Land Use Permit prior to making any 
changes authorized through this conditional use permit approval process.   

4. That within one year of CUP approval the owner/applicant provide appropriate 
vegetative screening or code-compliant fencing to hide the dumpsters as well as provide 
privacy screening to neighbors to the parking lot.  

5. That if vegetative screening is utilized instead of privacy fencing, any dead, dying or 
diseased vegetation shall be removed and replaced with viable and effective, visual-
screening vegetation as soon as practicable.         

6. No new structures, authorized by this conditional use permit, shall be located within the Little 
Green Lake Protection and Rehabilitation District’s maintenance easement. 

 
Town of Green Lake:  The Town Board Action request for the CUP was sent to the Town Clerk 
on June 13, 2023. The Town Board does not object to and approves the request.  

132


	02.20.24 cover sheet cv.pdf
	Meeting Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Little Green Lodge CUP TGL AmendedMEKD2.pdf
	Meeting Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	02.20.24 cover sheet cv.pdf
	Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft(2) Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	LUPGoebel4-20-23.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Little Green Lodge Reponses to BOA.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Exhibit 15 - Photos inside shed.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	[CLEANED]2024.02.06-Witness List.PDF
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Litlle Green Lodge CUP signed 8.3.2023.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Applicant Pages from April Meeting Packet.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	2.20.24 Public Hearing Notice.pdf
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	Draft Meetig Packet 2.20.24.pdf
	2.20.24 Agenda.pdf
	2024 Calendar.pdf
	1-16-2024-Minutes.pdf
	BOA Procedure (00224927xB94F0).pdf

	Applicant pages from August Meeting Packet.pdf
	Litlle Green Lodge CUP determination firm signed.pdf

	Exhibit 1 - Site Map.pdf
	Slide 1

	Exhibit 2 - CUP old owners.pdf
	Exhibit 3 - Photos Opening Night.pdf
	Exhibit 4 - photos of boathouses on little green lake.pdf
	Exhibit 5.pdf
	Exhibit 6.pdf
	Exhibit 7.pdf
	Exhibit 8.pdf
	Exhibit 9 - 350-32 Zoning C-1 General Commercial District.pdf
	Exhibit 10 - 350-14 Zoning Nonconforming uses, structures and lots or parcels.pdf
	Exhibit 11 - 338-32 Shoreland Zoning Building Setbacks.pdf
	Exhibit 12 - 338-54 Shoreland Zoning Discontinued nonconforming use.pdf
	Exhibit 13- Wroblewski Short term rental.pdf





	WroblewskiCUPAppealApp10-5-23.pdf


	CLEANED2024.02.06 Supplemental LTR to BOA.PDF
	40715948_1.pdf
	Exhibit a.pdf
	LUPGoebel4-20-23.pdf



	Staff Report from August Meeting Packet.pdf
	Appeal Wroblewski Little Green Lodge CUP TGL 2-20-24.pdf










